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(ON THE RECORD IN THE MATTER OF STATE OF SOUTH
CAROLINA V. ROBERT SHAVER CASE NO. 2010-GS-46-04011; 2012~

GS-46-00211;00212 THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2012 AT 03:57

P.M..)

SOLICITOR DESCH: Robert Shaver.\

(DEFENDANT, ROBERT SHAVER, WHITE MALE, ENTERING
COURTROOM. )

THE COURT: I got a sentencing sheet but no...

Oh, I'm sorry, this is --

MR. HANCOCK: This is a revocation and drug court
sentence.

THE COURT: I thought, I got you. Okay. I thought
the name Shaver, I apologize, I remember you from Drug
Court and I thought the name kept ringing a bell but...

All right.

SOLICITOR DESCH: May it please the Court, Your Honor.

Just for a housekeeping matter, Mr. Hancock is not
officially on the case. I understand that he has been
retained by the family to handle the sentencing for the
Drug Court termination, so if we could just put that on the
record that for the purposes of this sentencing Mr. Hancock
is retained for 2010-4-0-1-1; 2011-2-1-1 and 2-1-2 which
are the three indictments that Mr. Shaver is standing
before you and this is a Drug Court sentencing. He pled

back in I believe March. It was a negotiated fifteen year
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sentence and he is here before you --

THE COURT: March 3lst.

SOLICITOR DESCH: March 31lst. He has been terminated
from Drug Court and he is here before you for sentencing.

MR. HANCOCK: And that is true, Your Honor.

I have been retained by the family to represent him on
this sentencing as part of that will come up and be put in
the record later.

THE COURT: All right. 1I’1ll be glad now to hear from
Mr. Hancock.

MR. HANCOCK: Your Honor, I am going to ask the Court,
he plead in a negotiated sentence in Drug Court and of
course he did not make it through Drug Court for fifteen
years. I am going to ask that he remain here for sixty
days and be held in our facility so that I may actively
seek down and departure on these sentences. There are
certain things that have come to light that indicate that
there may fall within the statute so that I may seek the
downward departure and it may possibly be granted by the
Court and I just ask for that indulgence of the court at
this time.

THE COURT: He had an attorney. I can’t read the name
but he was represented and they negotiated the sentence of
fifteen years.

MR. HANCOCK: I believe its in the statute, Your
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Honor, that you can seek a downward departure even after
that sentence is negotiated.

THE COURT: What is the statute?

MR. HANCOCK: Regarding Drug Court.

THE COURT: What’s the State’s position?

SOLICITOR DESCH: The State’s position is that I think
the information that Mr. Shaver is seeking to provide to
the State was requested'of him at the time. It’s a huge
case that Jennifer Colton is working on. She is aware and
had ask him prior to if he wanted to help to .get less of a
sentence and he declined to help. I think now that he’s
facing the fifteen years he’s willing to help but it’s a
matter of whether Ms. Colton needs the help at this point
and that’s up to them; it’s not up to me. But I will say
that he was ask prior to if he wanted to help with
essentially the meth conspiracy and he declined to help at
the time.

MR. HANCOCK: Your Honor, I wasn’t his attorney at
that time or I would have --

THE COURT: I understand. But he had one and he
chose to make é decision and he made that decision.

Anything you want to say, Mr. Shaver?

MR. SHAVER: I just - I'm sorry I messed up, Your
Honor. I appreciate the chance.

THE COURT: All right, here’s what I’m gonna do as
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part of a suggestion. I'm going to impose the negotiated
sentence of one year on possession of marijuana. And the
two sentences on the fifteen years on distribution of
OxiCodone - OxyContin - and distribution of marijuana under
morphine as negotiated. But I'm going to entertain, if he
wishes to make it, a motion by your attorney to reconsider
that sentence and give him time to do anything he wants to
to argue that motion for reconsideration, if he makes that
motion.

MR. HANCOCK: And I so make the motion for a
reconsideration in that manner before the Court. I know it
has to be done before the close of this term.

THE COURT: Done today.

MR. HANCOCK: Done today.

THE COURT; You’ve done it on the record so I am going
to take the reconsider - impose a sentence, but I'm going
to take the reconsideration motion on all three of these
under consideration and I’1l defer hearing that giving Mr.
Hancock some time to do what he thinks may be of value in
presenting that argument.

MR. HANCOCK: And I will do so, sir.

SOLICITOR DESCH: Thank you, Your Honor.

(END OF TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD)
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State of South Carolina )

)
County of York )

v
)

I, Wanda Nelson, Official Court Reporter for the
Sixteenth Judicial Circuit for the State of South Carolina,
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> . /\FQ)UTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIOI§
S <
AFYOF York Joud g
.ATE VS. ) ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2011GS4600211
Robert Eugene Shaver ) A/WE 155776
o aRA P@ate ofOffense 8/18/2010 -
Race: WHITE Sex: M Age: ““33’ p_‘-‘ TR CURY 5 . 2453-0370000) S
DOB: !1979 SSH: NN 2012 (g PSR Goe # 0183 7
Address: <1 m Pfc 2?’ %‘2‘ v_._Aég
City State Z‘p Rock Hill, SC 20730 DAY(D I)A MILT Qi SENTENCE SHEET
DL#: _ S SID#: ELERY OF COURT
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat YesRNoﬂJU 7Y, Se /%
In disposition of the said indictment coimes now the Defendant who was (] CONVICTED OF or [X]PLEADS
TO: DISTRIBUTION OF OXYCOTIN, SCHEDULE Il NARCOTIC , 1ST OFFENSE (0- 15 YRS)
in violation of § 44-53-0370(b)(1) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0183
(X] NON-VIOLENT [(J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS  [JMOSTSERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45
w/minor st or Lewd Act)

The charge is:  [X] As Indicted, E]Lcsser Included Offense, DDefendam Waives Presentmcnt to Grand Jury, (defendant’s initigls)
The plea is: ithout Negotiatjons or Recommendation Negotiated Sentence, ecommendation by the State.
S Tt Zudy o s

yjenny E. SCBarf Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFOXRE, the Defendant is com)jted to the (27 State Department of Corrections, ] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of 1S days/monthsor {7 under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

[] CONCURRENT or [ CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
[J The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code & 24-135-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Depariment of Corrections.

[J The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to $.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of 2 violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[(JRESTITUTION: {] Deferred [ ] Def. Waives Hearing [Jordered  pTUP |
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ daysfhours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
[J Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling J
*Fine: b Random Drug/Alcohol testing
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 5 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
8 14-1-21 I{AXH) (Sgrlws. Su;charg]e) 5108 $ 10D pmts. of § beginning
14-1-21[{A)(2) ( urcharpe $10 . -
g 56-5.2995 (DUlAsseSsmentf 512 g ) _____ paid lo Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 3 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) 3500 $
§ 14-1212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 S 276
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 3 \&0
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 S v
8§ 56-5-2942(1) ( Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca § [7] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ ) § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (i paid in installments) $ i i
TOTAL s 70

during probation /}

. Presiding Judge ‘M
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk %W‘ Judge Code: aD g 4
Court Reporter: “WONO N Y Sentence Date: \ 1A \2

SCCA/217(03/2011)




Yiq ‘ CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
OF York ;
VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2011GS54600211
Robert Shaver _ y AW 1155776
ﬁAKA ACOTICNTD Y (l@%enfOﬁ'ense: 8/18/2010
P e L o TR A48} Ul 1
Race: . Sex M Age 32 S.C.Code § :_44-53-0370(b)(1) =

DOB: !&ss#_ 013 1IN 10)WH @3bCode #: _ 0183
Address: Df{f/{z Cyf/ﬁ', 96“

. : )
City,State,Zip:  Rock Hill, SC 29730 DAYID By iiLTCH SENTENCE SHEET .

DL _ SID#: CLERH Oy COURT | P
A T S &)

*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Ye‘s’iimoﬂ ITY, 8€ %

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [[] CONVICTED OF or X]PLEADS

TO: DISTRIBUTION OF SCHEDULE I DRUG (OXYCONTIN) (0-15 YRS)

in violation of § 44-53-0370(b)(1) of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0183

NON-VIOLENT J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [ JMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC []§17-25-45

- w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

The charge is: _).5 As Indicted, [TJLesser Included Offense, [ |Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)

The pleafs;, pions or Recommendation, woﬁated Sentence, Recommendation by the State.

ATTESY 12806 _LokR S 52 3
Dejch, Jenny E. A SC Bar# Defendant SCB

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the [ State Department of Corrections, County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of days/months/yearsor [ under the Youthful Offender Act notto exceed years

and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

of § ; Plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

[[] CONCURRENT or [[J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
[1] The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Correctjons.

[T The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[CORESTITUTION: [[] Deferred [ | Def WaivesHearing [ | Ordered  PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
[[] Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
——— May serve W/E begining
ljef:xplent. 5 Substance Abuse Counseling B
Fine: Random Drug/Alcobol testing [
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 3 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 § pmts.of$ _ beginning
§14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ : :
§ 56-5-2095 (DUI Assessment) $12 T Oih __ paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DU Breath Test) $25 § o ;
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) 8500 " § Sf aboroc 75‘—4 pro |
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ IDres Corid
g§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) 3150 $ [J Conditional Discharge, § 44-53-450(8) requires
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $s50 $ $350 be paid to the Clerk prior to case disposition
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vchicle Assessment) $40/ea  § [ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ § 47.12 rcquires $500 be paid to Clerk
§ 44-53-450(C) (Conditional Discharge) $350 § during probation.
3% to County (if paid in instailments) 3
TOTAL 3

&ézz?’é’/?

. : Presiding Judge z
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk :! P | ( !i(d ibm& j Iim Judge Code: AT
Court Reporter: ﬂ | Cjnl Sentence Date:  ‘“H13]- 1]

SCCAR17 (062010) (-
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT

) GZRTIFIED TR v
COUNTY OF YORK ) @ - CO-P
I3JUN 10 PH 2:52

At a Court of General Sessions, gré?{}’/gbﬁa_f“éjh.Tﬁéx_ﬁnuary 20, 2011, the Grand
Jurors of York County present upon their oz m"“{{{ & g&?ﬁq}}%&

DISTRIBUTION OF A SCHEDULE | DRUG “OXYCONTIN"

That on or about August 18, 2010, in York County, South Carolina, the
Defendant, Robert Eugene Shaver, did distribute, dispense, deliver or otherwise aid,
abet, attempt, or conspire to distribute, dispense, or deliver a quantity of Oxycontin, a
schedule | controlled substance under provisions of Section 44-53-190, et seq., Code of
Laws of South Carolina (1976), as amended, such distribution not having been
authorized by law, all in violation of Section 44-53-370, Code of Laws of South Carolina
(1976), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

case made and provided. W

ASSISTANT SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES

DEU\Schettler
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ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
J-155776

ACTI_ON OF GRAND JURY
TRUE BILL

Ty T

Forepersdh of Gmnﬂur)? p AZ y L/ /

7
VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

DOCKET NO. 2011-GS46- J02L /1

The State of South Carolina
County of York

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

January 20, Term 2011

THE STATE

VS.

ROBERT EUGENE SHAVER

Indictment for

DISTRIBUTION OF A SCHEDULE | DRUG
“OXYCONTIN"

SC Code: § 44-53-0370
CDR Code: 0183

After being fully advised as to my
legal rights, | hereby waive presentment
to the Grand Jury.

Defendant

hereby appear in my own proper person and plead
guilty to the within indictment or to

L

Defendant

SE o

C. LS. AND G.S.



ARREST WARRANT STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) ORIGINAL ~ i -
E Caunty/ D Municipality of ) AEFIDAVIT ot ‘o
J"‘1 5577_6 York ) :
oo STATE OF SOUTH CSR%'"“F‘& CRECE M- Personally appeared befote me the atfiant  Schettler who o
LZJ ntyl D l_m bl mHE L e being duly swom deposes and says that defendat  Robert Eugene Shaver
York N L did within this county and state on orabout (8/18/2010 violele tha ¢nminal laws of the
AN e 2 Pt 3: 0H state of South Carolina (or ordinance of County/ D Muriiclpality of York )
THE STATE 201000035772 in the following particulars:
against . FPTTRRN . . .
Robert Eugene Shaver 1 ;_‘a\:{lq :-i,:’:- .[:" i L i GH DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE 1o / MDP, Narcotic drugs in Sch. 1(b) & (c), LSD, and Sched. Il (Cocaine)- 1st offense
Addess: I ' UL o 183
Rock Hilt, SC 29730- | further siate that there is probable cause to belleve that the defendanl named ebove did commit
Phene: SSN: F__ the crime sat forth and that probable cause is based an the following facts:
Sex. M Race: W ‘ Height 6 2 Weight 180 The defendant did willfully and unlawfully violate the South Carolina Drug Laws by distributing two 60 mgBxyc&f}in Pills
orsme  go  oie: [N weighing approximately 1.8 grams to enother while at 5959 Mt. Gallant Rd. Rock Hill, South Cighlisiz YorgBo -'-
ooe: |[EN1979 Agency ORI #:  SC0460000 gg‘._'-} > < .
Prosecuting Agency:  York County Sheriff *Police Investigalion PP L % g
Prosecuting Officar: Schettler - $7052 *Recovery of Evidence (2 Ocycontin pills) ggg ~N
Offense: Drugs / MDP, Narcotic drugs in Sch. I(b) & (c), 2z @ S
LSD, and Sched. IT (Cocaine)- 1st offense ;{%’J = 50
Offense Code: 0183 . BagE
Code/Ordinance Sec:  44-53-0370(B)(1) Signature of Affiant VC N ,::z_ =2 ,‘-
This warrant 15 CERTIFIED FOR  SERVICE W ¥
s weront © g "o STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) @
D County/ D Municipality of E] Countyl D Municipality of ) Affiant's Address 1675 York Hwy
. The accused ) York, SC 29730--000
s to be amested and brought before me to be York Affiant's Telephone (803)628-3059
deelt with according to the law. — —
(=) T
el
5 ARREST WARRANT Sl E‘%ﬂ,
Signalure of Judge § g S % 11
Date: TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF-THISCOUND: ™M
It appearing from the above effidevit that there are raa@me:;;' grobmlis E beliove  that
- RETURN ' EE o I
A copy of this amast warrent was delivered lo on orabout _8/18/2010 deferdant Robert Eugene Shaver e Y=t <

« — Ll did violate the criminal laws of the State of South Carclina (or ondinance of :':C E)'
defendant _[&ﬂl_%@ﬂ_s_&kfﬂ_&_ E County/ D Municipatity of York ) as séf-{o::g_.berow:
on 0(3_ 28 =i -

i3
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / MDP, Narcotic drugs in Sch. I(b) & (¢), LSD, and Sched. 1I (Cocaine)- Tst offtnsc

03

25 2

Having found probable cause and the above affiant having swom before me, you are empowered and directed to arrest the said defendant and bring him or

her before me forthwith to be dealt with according to law. A copy of this Arrest Warrant shall be delivered to the defendant at the time of its execution, or as
soon thereafter as is practicable

RETURN WARRANT TO: Swom o and subscribed before me )
) on  08/25/2010 )
York County General Sessions 82512010, = ) Judge's Address  Moss Justice Center
1675 York Hwy Ls) ) York, SC 29745-7423
ng Judgs X -
‘Tfork, SC 29745 Lyndy Horton Benficld ) Judge’s Telephone  (803)628-3029
\ Judge Code: 5806 ) Issuing Court; Magistrate L__‘ Municipal D Circuit

B\ YGINAL : ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL



- ‘>| MROUNA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
’ . . hd )
P York JQLL )
)

Vs. INDICTMENT/CASE#: __ 2011GS4600212
) Robert Eugene Shaver ) AIWE 1155777 ‘
/<' : ~ . Date of Offense: _8/18/2010
Race: WHITE Sex: M RUE COSG Code  § ; _44-53-0370(bX1)

DOB: 1979 SS#:

. cCDR Code #: _ 0183 ) >
Address: ﬁg 2- SCI " %fg;’g
City,State,Zip:  Rock Hill, SC 29730 e e : e
DLY: SNEEEEN  SID¥ _ DRYIU A E"il::gf Ol SENTEE&E SHEET aﬁ?’g
*CDL Yes[[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazm l’[a'sf{ﬂu o"@SJRSE

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the DRSRIAHE B whs [] CONVICTEDOF or  [XJPLEADS
TO: DISTRIBUTION OF MORPHINE, SCHEDULE 1} NARCOTIC , IST OFFENSE (0- 15 YRS)

in violation of § 44-53-0370(b)(1) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0183

K] NON-VIOLENT ] VIOLENT []JSERIQUS [JMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC []817-25-45
w/minor st or Lewd Act)

The charge is: As Indicted, D Lesser Inciuded Offense, [ Defendant Waives Preseniment to Grand Jury. (defendant’s initials)

The plea i%\h’ithout Negotiations or Recommendation, X Negotiated Sentenge, {1, Recommendation by the State.
ATTEST: :
Dé}h, Jenny E. SC Bar# efendant Attorney for Defendant SCBar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is cominited to the [#”State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of ‘ { days/lnonths@ or [ underthe Youthful Offender Act not to exceed ' years
and/or to pay a fine of § ; provided tifat upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

[J CONCURRENT or [[J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
[] The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code £ 24-13-40 to be calculated and appiied
by the State Department of Corrections.

(] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is uniawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition..

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

JRESTITUTION: || Deferred [[] Def. Waives Hesring [[Jordered  PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms:; Obtain GED 0
[] Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.

— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling UJ
*Fine: : 3 Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments [07.5 %) b Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
g II :-ll-zzllll((:))((zl)) ((l()jar;vs Su;char%e) glgg ' TeTe) pmts. of § S beginning

-1 urcharge | . .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 512 g $  paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 % Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforee. Funding) £25 $ 75
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 § ]50
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 b
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca 8 [OJ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 g 4 5 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) ¥ i during probation.
TOTAL § 1400

<

) . Presiding Judge d\’f\j'ﬁh//‘?‘}
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk QQX_\_Q_PEQm;m_ Judge Code: ANa 7 !

Court Reporter: WONda NolSon Sentence Date: lU‘ '],94((7

SCCA/217¢03/2011)




IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSI%

)
York g
INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2011G84600212
r) A/WH#: J155777
‘:QTLF'!'"H TRl E) C (fDdte of Offense: _8/18/2010 T
Sex M 32 S.C.Code § :_44-53-0370(b)(1) Sl
Yo % =

DOB: QNI SS#: MM ik 5 kDR Codew: _ 0183 s
Address: N TG =D T N

: ; . ~PiCul=Covsr T
City,State,Zip:  Rock Hill. SC 29730 UAYVID fiAMILICH é‘{.g s
DL# U SID#: CLERA UF L,Gl%h [ SENTENCE SHEET {/
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazhii¥esr oNg[}) U
In disposition of the sgid indictment comes now the Defendant who was [1 CONVICTED OF or XJPLEADS
TO: DISTRIBUTION OF SCEEDULE I DRUG (MORPHINE) (0-15YRS)

in violation of § 44-53-0370(b)(1) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0183

NON-VIOLENT [] VIOLENT [JSERIOUS  [JMOST SERIOUS [ ]Mandatory GPS(CSC [1§17-25-45
w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

The charge is: As Indicted, [JLesser Included Offense, [ Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
The plea js+ Without Negptiations or Recommendation, [J_{] Negotiated Sentgawf?) O Recommeildation by the State,

ATTEST: 72866 % OllrS93

h, Jenny E. f SC Bar# Defendant Ahdrneyzf'or Qﬁendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the [J State Department of Corrections, [ ] County Detention Center,

for a determminate term of days/monthsfyears or  [] underthe Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of . days/months/years and/or payment

N

Robert Shaver

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

[[] CONCURRENT or [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
[] The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C, Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections.

[} The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [ ] Deferred [ ] Def, Waives Hearing [ |Ordered PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: - Obtain GED O
[0 Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
ile-clplent: S Substance Abuse Counseling O
Fine: Random Drug/Alcohol testing
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 § pmts. of beginning
§14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 " § . .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 3 th . paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 $ e ; —
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 ~ § —4-&,0& D"/‘/"V‘*
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 5 Dy Coen—
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 ~ § [] Conditional Discharg'e, 8 44-;3-450(0) requires
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 3 $350 be paid to the Clerk prior to case disposition
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $M0fea § [[] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) 35 3. § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
§ 44-53-450(C) (Conditional Discharge)  $350 $ during probation. _
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ .
TOTAL $ U\//, f CI/IT/‘/ ¢

. . Presiding Judge
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk Judge Code:
Court Reporter: L r C,l/\\ Sentence Date: ; -3 ] i l : ‘ -

SCCA/217 (06/2010)



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT
CERKSTED TRUE COPY
IM3JUN 10 PK 2:5]

At a Court of General Sessipnsj corivéned: on January 20, 2011, the Grand
Jurors of York County present upon, ﬁé’iﬁ% . COURT

Urin LOUHTY, S2

COUNTY OF YORK

DISTRIBUTION OF A SCHEDULE | DRUG “MORPHINE”

That on or about August 18, 2010, in York County, South Carolina, the
Defendant, Robert Eugene Shaver, did distribute, dispense, deliver or otherwise aid,
abet, attempt, or conspire to distribute, dispense, or deliver a quantity of Morphine, a
schedule | controlled substance under provisions of Section 44-53-190, et seq., Code of
Laws of South Carolina (1976), as amended, such distribution not having been
authorized by law, all in violation of Section 44-53-370, Code of Laws of South Carolina
(1976), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and céntrary to the statute in such

case made and provided. W

{_ASSISTANT SOLICITOR
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j WITNESSES
A
DEU Sehettler

1

tr

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
J-155777

ACTION OF GRAND JURY
TRUE DILL

HEY

Foreperson of Grafid Jury

VERDICT

Foreperson of Pelit Jury
Date;

DOCKET NO. 2011-GS-46- 00 2 12

The State of South Carolina
County of York

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

January 20, Term 2011

THE STATE

V8.

ROBERT EUGENE SHAVER

I

Indictment for

DISTRIBUTION OF A SCHEDULE I DRUG
“MORPHINE”

SC Code: § 44-53-0370
CDR Code; 0183

After being fully advisedastomy “'f
legal rights, | hereby waive presentment
to the Grand Jury.

Defendant

I
hereby appear in my own proper person and plead
guilty to the within indictment or to

G

Defendant

C. LS. AND G.S.



A GRREST WARRANT STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ORIGINAL *  S< wimer cowera
E County/ [:] Municipality of ) AFFIDAVIT gacg:i!‘.‘z'ms o
J-185777 York ) .
Cou SIATE OF SOUTH CQROL‘:::Y of TH FO"RE Cr i:’iaf&én'ally appeared before me the affiant Schettler who,
Yy [:] uniep o being duly swom deposes and says that defendant  Robert Eugene Shaver 4
York Pild viﬁrg:hls county and state on orabout (8/18/2010 violate the cnminal laws of tha
W-’ P la%’o uth Carolina (or ordinance of County/ I:l Munidpality of York ) )

THE STATE 201000035772

against
Robert Eugene Shaver

IE— SIS

EOURT Y o

in the following particulars:

ot A pALLE .
5{’\&@‘1”‘[}‘{’.5§CR'PT'°N OF OFFENSE  Drygs / MDP, Narcotic drugs in Seh. I(b) & (c), LSD, and Sched. 11 (Cocaine)- 1st offense
i IS G e

[§3

defendant named above did commit

Address:
Rock Hill, SC 29730- | further state that there |Is probable cause o belleve that the
Phone: SSN: the crime sst forth and that probable cause is based on the following fects:
Sec M~ Reos: W __ Heght 6 2 Weight 180 py gefendant did willfully and unfawfully violate the South Carolina Drug Laws by distributing four 30 mg Morphine pills to
Ot State: OL# S another while at 5959 Mt. Gallant Rd. Rock Hill, South Carolina, York County.
DOB: ! 1979 Agency ORI# SC0460000
Prosecuting Agency:  York County Sheriff *Policc Investigation
Prosecuting Officer: Schettler - §7052 *Recovery of Evidence ( 4 Morphine pilis) S v X3 a
Offense: Drugs / MDP, Narcotic drugs in Sch, I(b) & (c), D = 9
D A : X m
LSD, and Sched. II (Cocaine)- 1st offense s 5,":"7 é <
Offense Code: 0183 | e © g
Code/Ondinance Sec; 44-53-0370(B)(]) Signature of Affiant % { Sz 77 bi ’ ) ;g :,? g !a
This wanant 15 CERIIFIED FOR SERVICE  in e (= \ = a |
S STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) . I 2SN
D County/ D Municipelity of E County? D Municipally of ) Afiants Address 1675 York Hwy Sor M )
- The accused ) York, SC 29730--000 ;___28_-'_?_' e
is to be amested and broughi before me to be York Affiant's Tetephone  (803)628-3059 >» - I
dealt with according to the law. = -4 ]
~ o
(L.S.) = 0c
ARREST WARRANT O o N2
Signature of Judge :ij, ;:1 _:: % 3
Date: TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS'COUNTY: L
it appearing from the above affidavit that there are reasotéglﬁ . ~grounds  tocbefieve  that
RETURN i P —
¢ i + wamant was delversd (o on orabout  8/18/2010 defendant Robert Eugene Shaver e e » B~
A copy of this amest wamant W s/, did violate the cAminal laws of the State of South Carolina (or ordinance of <S5 = 5
defendant oz = JE By K] countyr [ Muicpaliyol  York ) asset ooy MY <
on %-25 0 Gy O
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / MDP, Narcotic drugs in Sch. I(b) & (c), LSD, and Sched. II (Cocaine)- Ieunffefist
\ f{m ) Having found probable cause and the above affiant having swom before me, you sre empowered and directed to arrest the said defendant and bring him or
* o OThoer her before me forthwith to be dealt with acconding to law. A copy of this Ammest Warrant shall be delivered to ihe defendant at the time of its execulion, or as
soon thereatter as is practicable )

RN WARRANT TO: |
York County General Sessions

\G75 York Hwy

ORIGINAL

Swom (o and subscribed before me

08/25/2010 , Moss Justice Center

York, SC 29745-7423
Judge's Telephone  (803)628-3029
{ssuing Court: Magistrate D Municipal

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

) Judge's Address

/L/(L.S.) )

on

ssuing

orton Benfield
Judge Cede: 5806 )
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

D Circuit

ORIGINAL
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FORM 3§

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

Comrop | 5(_ CERTIFIEC TRUD “"‘YIN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS, 7
ounty o i I
S o D ey
e %% 25
ﬁ@b?ﬁ} L g)nae( 75)Trbi ’;f:’ < % B,
‘r.k t s AR | {
Full name and prison number (lfam)of{AEp‘h OF F),URT R f:\
VaRY, l“f‘”’u {, 5C L':‘;—%‘:. ’% z
V. , ] 0T, 2 D
APPLICATIONFOR -+~ -

State of South Carolina POST-CONVICTION RE LIEI‘

INSTRUCTIONS - READ CAREYULLY

In order for this application to receive consideration by the Court, it shall be in writing (legibly
handwritten or typewritten), signed by the applicant and verified (notarized), and it shall set forth in
concise form the answers to each applicable question. [f necessary, applicant may furnish his answer to a
particular question on the reverse side of the page or on an additional page. Applicant shall make clear to
which question any such continued answer refers.

Since every application must be sworn under oath, any false statement of a material fact therein
may serve as the basis of prosecution and conviction for perjury. Applicants should, therefore, exercise
care to assure that alt answers are true and correct,

If the application is taken jn forma pauperis, it shall include an affidavit (attached at the back of
the form) setting forth information which establishes that applicant will be unable to pay the fees and
costs of the proceedings. When the application is completed, the original shal} be mailed to the Clerk of
Court for the County in which the applicant was convicted.

I Place of detention lu{J’\/Q‘ /L Z, / Fo . ?A/( 0’)50{1 ')u.fl’lfa,’ﬂ‘(
SC., 89103 _

2. 'Name and location of Court which imposed sentence TN
Cocowdt York  Lourd o

3. Name(s) of co-defendant(s) (if any) /V/ /4

4. The indictment number or numbers (if known) upon which and the offenses for which
sentence was imposed:
@ _RQ0iI£S4lpno 21
) ROULSA e 2
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(©)

The date upon which sentence was imposed and the terms of the sentence:

@ _J-34- 13

® 15 years in Apoe
©

Check whether a finding of gui lfy was made:
(a)  afteraplea of guilty \/

(b) after a plea of not guilty

(c) after a plea of nolo contendere

Did you appeal from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of sentence?

AJO

If you answered “yes" to (7), list:

™

(@)  the name of each Court to which you appealed:

l.

i,

il

(b)  the result in each such Court to which you appealed:

iii.

(©) the date of each such result:

iil.

(d)  if known, citations of any written opinion or orders entered pursuant to such
results: ‘

il

iif.

If you answered “no” to (7), state your reasons for not so appealing:

——

@ _L adidnd na T padd

(®)




10.

I1.

13.

21

()

State concisely the grounds on which you base your allegatjon that you are being held in

custody unlawfuily:

@ Lnad ?/f;uml Cruacel |

o Ll admnd pd ladee  dabe

(©)

State concisely and in the same order the facts which support each of the grounds set out
in (10):

(a) Mc/ //zrwuff /'l Aot 1‘*/’// el /,)(’)4?[ L _eoms €#‘:’5
{b) er ol n‘;f’ hr /A 73y d()‘m ‘}o_ get_me loss Lime nte.
(c) Hc (?o! Me ta_ S g0 DJ £4 4 lg% as Adbend /}Am Hhe '/f 5
Prior to this apphcatnon have you ﬂled with respect to this conviction:

(a) any petition in a State Court under South Carolina Law? 4/{9

(b)  any petition in State or Federal Courts for habeas corpus or post-convictions

relief? M

(¢}  any petition in the United States Supreme Court for certiorari other than petitions,

if any, already specified in (8)? D)
(d)  any other petitions, motions or applications in this or any other Court? 4[,3

1f you answered “yes” to any part of (12), list with respect to each petition, motion or

application:
(a) the specific nature thereof:

ii.

iii.

(b)  the name and location of the Court in which each was filed:




©) the disposition thereof:

il.

iil,

(d)  the date of each such disposition:

1ii.

1v.

(e) if known, citations of any written opinions or orders entered pursuant to each such

disposition:

Has any ground set forth in (10) been previously presented to this or any other Court,

State or Federal, in any petition, motion or application which you have ﬁl{ed?

7

If you answered “yes” to (14) identify:
(a) which grounds have been presented:

il.

iii.

(b)  the proceedings in which each ground was raised:

Revised 3/2003



17.
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[f any ground set forth in (10) has not previously been presented to any Court, State or
Federal, set forth the ground and state concisely the reasons why such ground has not

previously been presented:

(a) N .rmL Sule ham ‘)‘@ anseoc” Hv s 4&.\{ /ém;
(b)
(©

Were you represented by an attorney at any time during the course of:

(a)  your arraignment and plea? { Z S

(b)  your trial, if any?

(c)  your sentencing? [—1 5
(d)  your appeal, if any, from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of

sentence?

(e) preparation, presentation or consideration of any petitions, motions or

applications with respect to this conviction, which you filed?

If you answered “yes” to one or more parts of (17), list:

(a)  the name and address of each attorney who represented you:

i _Phil Semdly - Puble Dellodkc of SYock

/IL‘K}J /
Befl Hudonck ? /?'Hz)me;/ in Rk J:f

—
H

til.

(b)  the proceedings at which each such attorney represented you:

Rt pl’\ | Snm e 4/3'( mﬂ Drm rrcrim»nrl écu’?[ tx{ c:/dj_

”)43/4 'n dod ALW,/ er lz/s Hin JJM%«?
ii. B” //\nb/ﬁfjk g.o‘/ 2. (S \716‘«.”5 4N sfrqér.?[eca /f(ﬁéz

,f')fém ‘ned e frss Jl’mr be gei-- me_de S‘J}n '}Lér' ,19 g

iil.

Revised 3/2003
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19.  State clearly the relief you seek in filing this application: -
A Nedd ‘}‘f&r( . Aﬂ /'l#ur(]m/ a) /f)f' {D e 5 ﬂ()%

delck e nde &’\LHI/’I*’H)Z

20.  Are you now under sentence from any other court that you have not challenged?

Mo

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) VERIFICATION
County of (./ﬁr }L )

pm,é('(} L 5/7/4 el , being duly sworn

upon my oath, depose and say that T have subscribed to the foregoing application; that I know the
contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for vacating, setting aside or
correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this application; and that the matters and

allegations therein set forth are true.

SWORN tp and subscribed before me this [5+

day of \,JJApe . » 2DLS -

é 55[2, fMgg ) (LS.
Jotaf Public

My Commission Expites: gé,,_Q_EZ-. ;212 1A .

Revised 3/2003
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APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT
IN SUPPORT THEREOF

I, Q@!J(A L S(‘M{U ¢! f , hereby apply for leave to

proceed in this action without prepayment of fees or costs or security therefor. In support of my
application | declare under penalty of perjury that the following facts are true:

(I)  L'am the applicant in this action and 1 believe T am entitled to redress.

(2)  Because of my poverty | am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give

security thereof. ?,//7‘ g/

Applicant

SWORN or affirmed to and subscribed before me this

S5 dayofs\ Yype. DI

Notary Kdblic

My Commission Expires;: &} - %‘7 - ik

Revised 3/2003



STRAGOF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

COUNTY OF YORK

CASE NO.
2013-CP-46-1792

Robert E. Shaver #234875
(] Plaintiff

MOTION AND ORDER INFORMATION
FORM AND COVER SHEET

V.

State Of South Carolina
Defendant.

Plaintiff's Attorney: Defendant's Attorney:

W. Michael Hemlepp, Bar No. J. Rutledge Johnson, Bar No. 78871
Address: Address:

2506 W. Cranbrook Ln #3 Charlotte, NC 28207 PO Box 11549 Columbia, SC 29211-1549
phone: fax: phone: 803-734-3737 fax: 803-734-4113
e-mail; other: e-mait; other:

[ | MOTION HEARING REQUESTED (attach written motion and complete SECTIONS 1 and lil)
[X] FORM MOTION, NO HEARING REQUESTED (complete SECTIONS Il and Iil)
[ | PROPOSED ORDER/CONSENT ORDER (complete SECTIONS Il and Iif)

SECTION I: Hearing Information

Nature of Motion:
Estimated Time Needed: Court Reporter Needed: [ ] YES / [] NO

SECTION li: Motion/Order Type

X Written motion attached
(] Form Motion/Order
I hereby move for relief or action by the rt as set forth in the attached proposed order.

i October 1, 2013
_Signature of AttSrrley TorT_JPlaintiff / [X]Defendant Date submitted

SECTION Hil: Motion Fee
[J PAID — AMOUNT: / (J

EXEMPT: [] Rule to Show Cause in Child or Spousal Support
(check reason) [ 1 Domestic Abuse or Abuse and Neglect
[] Indigent Status  [] State Agency v. Indigent Party
[ ] Sexually Violent Predator Act X] Post-Conviction Relief
[] Motion for Stay in Bankruptcy .
[_] Motion for Publication ~ [] Motion for Execution (Rule 69, SCRCP)
[ ] Proposed order submitted at request of the court; or,
reduced to writing from motion made in open court per judge’s instructions
Name of Court Reporter:
[] Other:

JUDGE’S SECTION
] Motion Fee to be paid upon filing of the

attached order.
[] Other: JUDGE

CODE: __ Date:

CLERK’S VERIFICATION
Date Filed:

Collected by:

L] MOTION FEE COLLECTED:
[ | CONTESTED — AMOUNT DUE:

SCCA/233 (11-03)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF YORK ) SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
)
Robert E. Shaver, #234875, ; 2013;CP-46-1792
Applicant, ;
v. ; RETURN
State of South Carolina, ;
Respondent. g
)

The Respondent, making its Return to the application for post conviction relief (PCR)

filed June 7, 2013, would respectfully show this Court:
L.

The Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections
pursuant to orders of commitment of the York County Clerk of Court. The Applicant was
indicted at the January 2011 term of the York County Grand Jury for Distribution of Schedule I
Drug (Oxycotin) (2011-CP-46-0211) and Distribution of Schedule I Drug “Morphine” (2011-
GS-46-0212). Bill Hancock, Esquire, represented him. On March 31, 2011, the Applicant waived
pled guilty to Distribution of Morphine and sentenced to Drug Court by the Honorable John C.
Haye_s, III. The Applicant subsequently failed out of Drug Court and was sentenced by Judge
Hayes on November 29, 2012 to imprisonment for fifteen (15) years for Distribution of
Morphine and one year, concurrent, for Distribution of Oxycotin. Applicant did not appeal his

conviction and sentence.
Attached herewith and incorporated herein are the records of the York County Clerk of
Court regarding the subject conviction(s), the Applicant's records from the South Carolina

1of4
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Department of Corrections and the guilty- plea transcript The Respondent reserves the right to
amend this Return upon receipt of any relevant materials.
II.
In his current Application, the Applicant alleges that he is being held in custody
unlawfully for the following reasons:
1. “Inadequate Councel(sic)”

a. “My lawyer didn’t tell me what I was
getting into.”

b. “He told me he was going to get me less
time”

c. “He got me to sign a plea that was
different from the first.”

Any claims not specifically enumerated in the PCR application or amendments will be
opposed by the State at evidentiary hearing. All amendments should be made well in advance of
hearing and should be filed as required by Rule 11, SCRCP(a).

[I1.

Respondent interprets all of Applicant’s claims as being claims of ineffective assistance
of counsel. In a post-conviction relief action, the Applicant bears the burden of proving the
allegations in their application. Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985). Where the

-application alleges ineffective assistance of counsel as a ground for relief, the Applicant must

rove that "counsel's conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process
p prop g

that the trial cannot be relied upon as having produced a just result." Strickland v. Washington,
466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 2064, 80 L.Ed.2d 674, 692 (1984); Butler, 334 S.E.2d 813.

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided representation
within the range of competence required in criminal cases. The courts presume that counsel

rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable

20f4
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professional judgment.  Strickland, 466 U.S. 668. The Applicant must overcome this

presumption in order to receive relief. Cherry v. State. 300 S.C. 1 15,386 S.E.2d 624 (1989).

The reviewing court applies a two-pronged test in evaluating allegations of ineffective
assistance of plea counsel. First, the Applicant must prove that counsel's ‘performance was
deficient.  Under this prong, the court measures an attorney=s performance by its
"reasonableness under professional norms." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625, citing
Strickland. Second, counsel's deficient performance must have prejudiced the Applicant such
that "there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of
the proceeding would have been different." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. With
. Tespect to guilty plea counsel, the Applicant must show that there is a reasonable probability that,
but for counsel's alleged errors, he would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going
to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 106 S.Ct. 366, 88 L.Ed. 2d 203 (1985).

The Respondent submits that the Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the
Strickland test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises
questions of fact that the record does not conclusively refute. Accordingly, the Respondent

requests an evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264,

305 S.E.2d 247 (1983).

Iv.
Each and every allegation contained within the application not hereinbefore either
expressly admitted, qualified or explained is hereby denied.
V.

| WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the State requests that an evidentiary hearing be

held.
30f4
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jﬁééﬁ// , 2013,

4 of 4

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney General

SALLEY W. ELLIOTT
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

J. RUTLEDGE JOHNSON
Assistant Attorney General

By: M]@

AT{O}}@’F@RWMDENT
Office of ttorney General

P.O.Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211




31

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

COUNTY OF YORK
2013-CP-46-1792

ROBERT E. SHAVER, 234875

Vs AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
Applicant, )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,
Respondent.
1. I'am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.
2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina

and that this is a proper circumstance of service by mail.

3. I have this day served a copy of the Return in the above-captioned matter on the
following person(s) by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

W. Michael Hemlepp, Esquire
2506 W. Cranbrook Lane #3
Charlotte, NC 28207

DATED this 1st day of October, 2013.

@7/3/%4%

CRandra " X;({)ygg, Legal Aghistant
For Respo dent
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
) SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF YORK . ) CASE NO.: 2013-CpP-46-1792

ROBERT SHAVER

vs. TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

— e

AUGUST 1, 2016
YORK, SOUTH CAROLINA

BEFORE THE HONORABLE LETITIA VERDIN

APPEARANCES:

JUSTIN HUNTER, ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

ATTORNEY FOR THE STATE
NATHAN J. SHELDON, ESQUIRE
ROCK HILL, SOUTH CAROLINA

ATTORNEY FOR THE APPLICANT

SHIRLEY BROOM
16™ circuit Court Reporter




WITNESSES:

ROBERT SHAVER
By Mr. Sheldon
By Mr. Hunter

PHIL SMITH
By Mr. Hunter
By Mr. Sheldon

DIRECT CROSS

11

14
20
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RE-DIRECT RE-CROSS
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(NO EXHIBITS)

E-X-H-I-B-I-T-S

DESCRIPTION

EVD.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. HUNTER — May it please the Court, Your Honor.

THE COURT - Yes.

MR. HUNTER - The next case is Robert Shaver
versus State of South Carolina, 2013-CP-46-1792. He was
indicted at the January, 2011 term of York County Grand
Jury for distribution of Schedule I drug, Oxycontin and
distribution of Schedule I drug, Morphine. He was
represented by Mr. Phil Smith on Mérch 31st, 2011; with Mr.
Smith, he pled guilty to both charges and was sentenced to
drug court by Judge Hayes. Later, on November 29th, 2012,
he appeared before Judge Hayes again after faiiing out of
drug court. At this time he was represented by Mr. Bill
Hancock and was sentenced to current negotiated 15-year
terms of imprisonment. He did not file a notice of appeal.
Your Honor, on —-- current action, June 7*", 2013 -- and just
for a brief background, this case was originally heard
April 13*, 2015 before Judge Kinard. Before ruling on it,
he, unfortunately, passed away; the case was distributed to
Judge Gibbons who relinquished jurisdiction and ordered a
de novo hearing. That’s what we’re here for today upon -
and it’s de novo, as I said. He’s present today
represented by Mr. Nathan Sheldon, and just for another
housekeeping matter, the plea transcript in this case is
unavailable. The transcript that’s in -- that’s been

provided to Your Honor is the sentencing transcript from
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ROBERT SHAVER - DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON

2012, Like I say, he’s present today represented by Mr.
Nathan Sheldon. 1I’11 turn it over to him.

THE COURT - All right, yes, sir.

MR. SHELDdN - Thank you, Your Honor. May it
please the Court.

| THE COURT - Yes, sir.

MR. SHELDON - If the Court’s ready to proceed, so
are we. We’d call Robert Shaver to the stand.

THE COURT - All right, very well. Mr. Shaver, if
you’ll come forward and be sworn.

ROBERT SHAVER, AFTER BEING FIRST DULY SWORN,

TESTIFIES AS FOLLOWS -

THE COURT - For some reason, I don’t think our

microphone’s working, so I’m going to have to ask you to

speak up.
MR. SHAVER - Yes, ma’am.
THE COURT - All right. I appreciate it.
MR. SHAVER - Okay.
MR. SHELDON - May it please the Court, Your
Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. SHELDON -

Q Mr. Shaver, please state your name of the record.
A Robert Eugene Shaver.

Q And are you currently incarcerated?
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Yes, sir.
Where at?
At Tyger River Correctional Institute.
And you’re serving a 15-year sentence?
Yes, sir.

And you were sentenced before into drug court and then

subsequently sentenced to incarceration by Judge Hayes on

November 29" of 20122?

A Yes, sir.

Q Mr. Shaver, I —-- let’s go back to -- I know you’ve
done this once before, but let’s go back to the beginning.
What were you originally charged with?

A Distribution of Oxycontin and Morphine.

Q Is that what you received a 15-year sentence on?

A Yes, sir.

0 Who was your attorney that got yoﬁ into drug court?
A Phil Smith.

Q Okay. And what was your relationship like with Mr.
Smith?

A It was pretty brief. I mean we didn’t talk a whole
lot. T mean he offered me a five-year cap to begin with

and then I asked him could he get me into drug court, and

he called me up and said that he got me into drug court, to

come

up there and get in it that day, you know what I mean?
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ROBERT SHAVER - DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON

Q So the original offer on the case was five —- was a
cap of five?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you chose to turn that down. Is that right?

A Yes, sir.

Q When were you -- were you in jail at the time that you

accepted the plea‘into drug court?

A No, sir.
o) Where did you meet with Mr. Smith at?
A In his office up here.

Here at the Moss Justice Center?
Yes, sir.

And how long was that meeting?

I o T B o)

Twenty minutes, thirty minutes, maybe.

Q And -- but you had wanted to plea into drug court. 1Is
that right?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did he explain to you what all drug court entailed?
A Just -- not really. He said he didn’t -- he wasn’t:
real familiar with it.

Q And you, eventually, come up here and plead guilty
into drug court. 1Is that right?

A Yes, sir.

Q Is that the same day that he told you you’d been

offered drug court?
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ROBERT SHAVER - DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON ] 8
A Yes, sir.
Q When you came -- prior to coming up here to be

sentenced into drug court, did you have any discussions

over what -- how much time would be hanging over your head?
A No, sir.
Q Were you aware prior to walking into the courtroom

that day that you’d be having 15 years held over your head?

A No, sir.

Q Do you remember anything about being sentenced to 15
years?

A No, sir.

0 What would you have done had you have known that there
was this large sentence hanging over your head?

A I don’t think I would;ve took a 15. That’s -- that'’s
a lot of time. I mean I wouldn’t have took it.

Q What would you have done instead?

A I would’ve took the five-year cap.

Q But certainly you didn’t go into drug court thinking
you were going to fail out; did you?

A No, sir.

Q Would you have taken -- I mean -- so if you thought
you were going to succeed, why would it have mattered

whether you got 15 or not?
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ROBERT SHAVER - DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON

A

five

Because I don’t understand why they -- it went from

all the way up to 15. I don’t undetstand why -— why

it went up so much.

Q Would you have wanted to risk 15?2

A No, sir.

Q You, eventually, failed out of drug court. 1Is that
right?

A Yes, sir.

Q And that -- you were‘sentenced on that about a year

and a half later -- Right? -- November of 2012.

A

Q

A

Q

Yes, sir.

Who represented you on that charge -- at that hearing?
Bill Hancock.

And so it was not Mr..Smith; it was Mr. Hancock at
hearing.

Yes, sir.

Did you hire Mr. Hancock?

Yes, sir.

At that hearing you were sentenced to 15 years,

weren’t you?

A

Q

Yes, sir.

Did Mr. Hancock bring it to your attention that it was

15 years at that time prior to going in and getting

sentenced?

A

I ain’t sure -- say it again.
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ROBERT SHAVER - DIRECT BY MR. SHELDON

0 Prior to getting sentenced -- did you ever meet with

Mr. Hancock?

A No, sir.

Q You didn’t meet with Mr. Hancock at all?

A I mean I talked to him on the phone one time.

Q How long did that conversation last?

A Not long, five minutes, maybe.

Q Were you made aware that you were getting sentenced to
15 years?

A Yes, sir.

Q By Mr. Hancock.

A Yes, sir.

Q Were you under the impression that he could,
potentially, get you a lesser sentence?

A Yes. He told me he was going to get me a lesser
sentence; he was going to try, is what he said.

Q And did he -- from what you recall of your sentencing,
did the Judge allow him to make a motion to, essentially,
reduce the 15-year sentence?

A He allowed him, but I -- he didn’t. I mean we didn’t
do it. |

Q Was that motion ever filed by Mr. Hancock?

A No, sir.
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ROBERT SHAVER - CROSS BY MR. HUNTER 11

Q And so to this day, the motion that was, essentially,
allowed by Judge Hayes at your sentencing hearing has never
been filed, has it?

A No, sir.

Q Why would Mr. Hancock want to argue for less? Did you
discuss that with him?

A Well, yeah, I -- I was asking him to argue for less

and, you know, with -- I don’t really know why he wouldn’t.

() Were you under the impression that he was going to do
that?
A Yes, sir.

MR. SHELDON - Thank you, Your Honor. I don’t
have anymore questions.

THE COURT - Yes, sir.

‘MR. HUNTER - Just briefly.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. HUNTER -

Q So you said -- well, if you could remind me, how many
times did you meet with Mr. Smith before you pled?
A Before I pled?

Yes.

Q

A Just once.
Q And that was when he told you about the five-year cap?
A

Yes, sir.
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ROBERT SHAVER - CROSS BY MR. HUNTER ‘lfz
Q Okay. And y’all discussed drug court -- correct? --—
the day you pled?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay.

A No, we didn’t -- we didn’t discuss drug court the day
I pled. I asked him about getting drug court when he
offered me the five-year cap.

Q Okay. Okay. And was there ever a discussion about a
negotiated 15-year sentence?

A No, we never talked about the 15.

Q Did the Judge discuss this to (sic) you, if you
recall, during your plea?

A He didn’t. It doesn’t say on the sentencing sheet or

anything about 15 years.

Q And you never signed any negotiation forms?
A No, sir.
Q And did you ever discuss the amount of time that you

were looking at on these charges, the maximum sentence they

carry?

A No, sir.

Q And you did enter into drug court. Correct?
A (No response)

Q How long were you there?

A Eighteen months.
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ROBERT SHAVER - CROSS BY MR. HUNTER

Q And you said that you turned down a five-year cap
offer?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you never understood -- or —-- were you ever told

what would happen if you failed out of drug court?
A I told that I would go to jail, but I wasn’t told how
much time.
Q Did you ever ask?
A No.

MR. HUNTER - Beg the Court’s indulgence one
second, Your Honor.

THE COURT - Certainly.

MR. HUNTER - That’s all I have.

THE COURT - All right. Anything else for this
witness?

MR. SHELDON - No, Your Honor.

THE COURT - Sir, you can step down. Thank you.
Anything else on behalf of the applicant?

MR. SHELDON - No, Your Honor.

THE COURT - All right. Anything on -- anything
from the State?

MR. HUNTER - Your Honor, the State would call Mr.
Phil Sﬁith.

THE COURT — All right.
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PHIL SMITH - DIRECT BY MR. HUNTER 14

PHIL SMITH, AFTER BEING FIRST DULY SWORN,

TESTIFIES AS FOLLOWS -

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. HUNTER -

Q Good morning, Mr. Smith.
A Good morning.
Q Could you please tell us where you’re employed?

A The York County Public Defender’s Office.

Q And is that where you were employed when you
represented the applicant here?

A It was.

Q Could you tell us about how you became -— I guess —-
were you appointed to represent --—-

A The office was initially appointed. I believe the
first attorne§ he had in our office was Gary Lemel. It was
an earlier charge back in 2010, I believe. My first
contact with Mr. Shaver would’ve occurred in January of
2011.

Q And just to give us some background, how many times
did you meet with him before the plea?

A My file indicates five times of contact; now, some of
those were over the phone. In fact, the first conversation
we had over the phone where he says he doesn’t want to

plead but to see if I could get him probation or drug court
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that occurred over a phone, but five different times of
contact‘that we had.
Q Okay, and just to discuss drug court. Are you
familiar with drug court?
A I am.
Q Have you -- have you advised applicants or defendants
to do drug court before?
A I have talked to them about the decision; ultimately
it’s, obviously, their decision, but, yes, I’ve advised
concerning entrance into drug court.
Q But you are familiar with the process?
A Yes.
0 Okay. And I believe you testified that the initial
plea offer was to a five-year cap. Is that correct?
A That’s correct. That would’ve occurred I think at our
second or third contact. That offer would’ve been
communicated at the end of January, January 24, a cap of
five years.

And you relayed this offer?
A I did.
Q And he -—- he informed you that he did not want to take
it?

A That’s correct.
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PHIL SMITH - DIRECT BY MR. HUNTER 16

Q Okay. And just as far as his charges go, did you
discuss with him the potential sentences and the elements
of the crimes that the State would have to prove?

A We did.

Q Okay. Do you think he understood the potential

sentences?

A Yes.

Q Was this ever in a trial posture for you?

A No, he -- he indicated he didn’t want to accept active

time and wanted some other resolutions, but from the
initial conversation with him, Mr. Shaver indicated that he
wanted to see if he could get probation or drug court. He
never mentioned wanting to go to trial.

0] Okay. Were there any other plea offers rélated by the
State during your representation?

A The offer was cap of five. He indicated he did not
want that. He mentioned again to see if he could get drug
court and that’s where conversation with the prosecutor
occurred between me and her concerning drug court. She
then agreed to that. I don’t know if that would count as a
second offer, but there were no other offers other than the
cap of five.

Q As far as the agreement to drug court is concerned,
was there discussions with the State of a potential

sentence or a deal if he failed out of drug court?
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PHIL SMITH - DIRECT BY MR. HUNTER 17

¥

A I've always known it to be negotiated in this county.
I know in some counties you just plea into drug.court and
sentencing is withheld, but in my experience in this
county, they always have a sentence that you want to --
that you are to accept before you enter. I don’t have a
specific note prior to the plea concerning the 15 years,
but that’s my understanding of how it occurs here.

Q Okay. 1Is that your understanding out it occurred in
this case?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Was he made aware of this 15-year sentence that
he would receive if he failed out of drug court?

A He would have been, and I cannot state, specifically,
because, obviously, we do not have a transcript, but I

\

would imagine that the Court went over that with him, as
well. 1I can say that always in counseling concerning drug
court I have a conversation with my clients that if you
could plea now and get some number of years, it -- if you
go into drug court and then do not succeed, you are going
to get a much higher sentence, so I would’ve had that
conversation, the generic with him, in addition to
discussion at the plea of the exact sentence.

Q And I believe you testified the first time y’all
discussed drug court was the day of the plea. Do you

remember how those meetings occurred?
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PHIL SMITH - DIRECT BY MR. HUNTER 18

A No, I -- well, there could’ve been on-going
negotiation trying to get him to drug court. That
certainly could happen, but I know that in January 24, 1
called and he indicated he didn’t want to plea, that he
would call back to go over discovery further, then on
February 2™, I spoke with him and he indicated that he
wouldn’t be able to come in on February 7", that he would
come in to meet with me on February 10" and we would’ve had
the next discussion and then, ultimately, the end of March
is when drug court worked out, and we would’ve had the
discussion that -~ the conversation that he describes of,
yes, they’ve agreed to accept drug court, you need to come
over and we need to do that plea, and the majority of that
conversation would’ve occurred the day of that plea.

Q Okay. And again, you explained to him -- is it
correct that you explained to him what happens when he
fails?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And did you explain to him the amount of time
that he would get when he failed?

A That would be my practice. I don’f have a specific
note on it. I do have a note in the file that drug court,
knew it to be 15 years, so that must've’been communicated,
but I -- but I do not see it on his sentencing sheet and I

do not have a specific note in my file concerning 15 years.
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PHIL SMITH - DIRECT BY MR. HUNTER ' 19

Q Do you remember if an affidavit or some other
negotiation form was used in this case?

A I can’'t say 2011. I know Judge Hayes created one that
the circuit uses now, but I can’t say if that would’ve
occurred before 2011 or not.

Q Okay. 2And as far as his plea goes, just to the best
of your recollection, do you remember anything unusual
about this plea that would cause you Concern?

A I didn’t remember anything about it, and I didn’t
realize we didn’t have the transcripts until the first PCR
either. |

Q Okay. 2And are you familiar with Judge Hayes’s guilty

pleas?
A Yes.
Q You’ve had several in front of him?

A Thousands probably.

Q Okay. When he does his guilty pleas, does he,
typically, go over the defendant’s constitutional rights?
A Yes.

Q Okay. Does he go over the sentencing ranges that the
defendant faces?

A He does.

Q Okay, if there’s negotiations or recommendations, does
he go over that?

A He does.
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PHIL SMITH - CROSS BY MR. SHELDON

Q Does he usually make sure that the plea is given

freely and voluntarily?

A Yes.
Q Does he make sure that there’s no promises made or
threats?
A Yes.

Q Okay. And, again, I believe you testified you
couldn’t remember anything, but at the end of the day, was
there anything that caused you concern after this plea?
A No, I have no note of indication of anything having
gone wrong or unusual at the plea.
Q If there was, you would’ve done something about it?
A Yes.
MR. HUNTER - QOkay. That’s all I have.
MR. SHELDON - Thank you, Your Honor. May it
please the Court.

THE COURT - Yes, sir. Certainly.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. SHELDON -

Q Mr. Smith, is it standard practice now in York County
to do a plea affidavit?

A It is.

Q And in that plea affidavit, does it 1list out the
specific charges someone is pleading to? N

A It does.

1

20
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PHIL SMITH - CROSS BY MR. SHELDON ' : 21

Q Does it list out a recommendation from the State?
A Yes.
Q Does it —— if it’s a negotiated sentence, does it 1list

out the negotiation from the State?

A

Q

A

time.

Q

It does.
Who prepares that document?

The solicitor ninety-nine percent plus percent of the

And so -- and did you say that it’s now Judge Hayes'’s

practice to have pebple fill out that form prior to

pleading guilty?

A That’s correct.

Q Because it resolves cases like this, doesn’t it?

A It would help, yes, sir.

Q And so -- but that -- but those forms in some version
did not -- were not invented out of nowhere by Judge Hayes,

were they?

A

That’s correct. We had —-— I had some I would use; Mr.

Dest in our office had one that he would use, so they did

exist in other forms before the, sort of, unified one that

Judge Hayes had set forth.

Q

But you -- and even if Judge Hayes didn’t require it,

you never did one in this case, regardless. Right?

A

I don’t see a copy of one, no.
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PHIL SMITH - CROSS BY MR. SHELDON 22

Q Would it be your standard practice on a 15-year
sentence to do a plea affidavit or not?

A Probably more often than not. I don’t know ff it
being drug court, I don’t know that I was doing them
normally for a d}ug court plea, so I can’t say with regard
to this, but it would not have been unusual for me to have
done one, and I don’t see one in this case.

Q And you mentioned Judge Hayes’s standard practice of
going over trial rights and things like that?

A Yes.

0 Was this your first plea into drug court or had you
done that prior to this?

A I had done it prior.

Q Was it Judge Hayes -- would -- based on your
experience of pleading people into drug court, would there

typically be a sentence indicated on the sentencing sheet

or no-?
A I expected that to exist, and it does not.
Q So when someone is actually sentenced to drug court,

the deferred sentence or the suspended sentence, or
whatever we want to call it, is, typically, listed on the
sentencing sheet.

A That was my understanding. I thought that’s how we
then later knew what the sentence would be when they were

brought back.
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Q And in this case there is no sentence listed on the
sentencing sheet.

A There is not, on either of the sentencing sheets.

Q And there is nothing in your notes to indicate that
you explained the 15 years hanging over Mr. Shaver’s head
prior to going to Court.

A That is correct.

0 And you referenced that you had something from drug
court saying that it was a 15-year sentence. Is that
right?

A That’s correct.

Q But that would’ve occﬁrred after the plea, wouldn’t
that?

A Clearly.

Q Okay. So after the plea, drug court states that it’s

a 15-year sentence but nothing in your notes reflects that

that was -- that was related to Mr. Shaver prior to the
plea.
A Right. I can’t say prior. I can say on my file note

23

concerning the plea, my writing in blue says the plea, and

then there is some writing in black that says 15 suspended

on, but I can’t say if that was me or if that was Mr.

Vansycle who also had some contact with Mr. Shaver from my

office or -- or from where that came.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

PHIL SMITH - CROSS BY MR. SHELDON Esgi
Q And I -- I only need to spend about 30 seconds on that
annotation on your file, so if something’s written on (sic)
blue, would you write that in the courtroom or no?

A I -—— I -— it appears I wrote this in the courtroom and
then at some point black was written, but that would be
post-plea, as well.

Q It would’ve been post-plea.

A That's correct.

o) So you wouldn’t have taken a blue pen and then taken a
—-- then immediately picked up a black pen and wrote
something different?

A Would not.

Q So the 15 -- the only annotation on the 15 years on
the file is, actually, post-plea, as well.

A Correct.

Q And you didn’t have anything to do with the plea after
—— after failing out of drug court. Is that correct?

A I remember being contacted by Mr. Hancock, and I
remember him saying he was hoping to get the Judge to knock
it down, but -- and then they -- his office asked my office
for some copies of discovery later, but nothing regarding
the proceeding in the courtroom.

Q Will Judges knock those pleas down, typically, or no?
A It -- it has occurred. At first there was a sort of

bright line rule that they were not. I think that’s become
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PHIL SMITH -~ CROSS BY MR. SHELDON 25

a little more flexible. I think our circuit’s a little
different than some. 1In some places there’s a lot of
discretion.at sentencing, and I hope we’re trending a
little more toward that. This was clearly a very large
sentence. I would’ve hoped that that consideration

would’ve been taken, and I think Judge Hayes indicated he

would at least year it, but I -— I can’t say other than
that.
Q And so is -- are drug -- are drug court pleas the same

now as they were then? Do you go in on a negotiated
sentence now?

A The last one I did still had to be a negotiated
sentence. That’s correct.

Q And that could still be argued later on at sentencing?
A Thankfully, it hasn’t come back, but it’s my
understanding that it could be.

Q Okay. So you’re —— the negotiated portion of the
sentence isn’t necessarily the amount of years itself.

A The prosecutor would take a different view of that. I
think they would say the negotiation is an agreement
between my client and the State, that if he doesn’t pass,
to do that, but I think, ultimately, the Court sentences.

Q Okay. So the -- I guess -— I guess my question, Mr.
Smith, is, on a drug court plea, not necessarily this one,

but any drug court blea, if it’s a negotiated sentence as
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PHIL SMITH - CROSS BY MR. SHELDON 26
listed on the sentencing sheet negotiated, will a Judge
take the -- can a Judge take the position that the sentence
should -- can be lowered?
A I think the Court sentences and has that power, but I
don’t think -- I think they could, but I don’t know if
that’s common practice.

MR. SHELDON - QOkay. I don’t have anymore
questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT - Anything else for this witness?

MR. HUNTER - Nothing else.

THE COURT - Sir, you can step down.

MR. SMITH - Thank you.

THE COURT - Thank you. Anything else on behalf
of the State?

MR. HUNTER - Nothing else from the State, Your
Honor.

THE COURT - All right. Anything -- anybody want
to sum anything up? 1I’11 be happy to hear from you if you
want to.

MR. SHELDON - Your Honor, the only -—- the only
reason I’11 do a summary on this case is because of the
complex procedural history. Basically, at -- we’re relying
on the transcript. To start with, the issue of Mr. Hancock
- we're relying on the transcript for November 29%%, 2012.

Clearly, Judge Hayes allowed him to, potentially, -- he did
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orally make a motion to reconsider, which was timely, must
be done -- must be done the same week of/the plea. Mr.
Hancock did that. Mr. -- Judge Hayes then allowed him to
file a supplemental motion, essentially, asking for a lower
sentence, which was hever done. That doesn’t exist in the
file. There’s no evidence that that motion was ever filed.
So Judge Hayes allowed for it to happen, but the attorney
never actually did it. Going back to Mr. Smith, there’s no
-— the transcript was lost. It’s not the State’s fault,
but it’s also not the defendant’s fault, and it was
requested timely. I mean I think everybody will agree to
that, that it was within the five years, so the transcript
being lost, Your Honor, is unfortunate. There's nothing
that Mr. Smith has in his notes that reflects that he was
ever told of the 15 years that were hanging over his head
prior to the plea. There’s nothing on the sentencing sheet
that indicates that there was a 15-year sentence, and so,
Your Honor, -- and he’s testified that had he known it was
15 years prior to the plea, he wouldn’t have taken it, that
he would’ve taken his chance with a cap of five. Your
Honor, we believe that arises to the level of ineffective -
- clearly, had he taken the cap of five, the outcome
would’ve been different, because he wouldn’t have gotten

more than five. And so, Your Honor, we’d ask the Court to
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find ineffective assistance on that ground, as well, and
that’s, essentially, where we’re at.

THE COURT -~ All right. On behalf of the State?

MR. HUNTER - Your Honor, just briefly. I believe
he testified that he rejected the cap of five, and as far
as whether or not there’s any notes that indicate whether
the 15-year cap was ever relayed -- some notes -- I believe
he testified that he -- it was normal practice to relay
that information to go over the potential sentences that
he’d be facihg, and the fact that it is negotiated would
make —- the State would believe that that was relayed to
him at some point prior to going into drug court. Your
Honor, we —-— the State would believe -- as unfortunate it
is that the transcript was lost, the State would just argue
that he hasn’t met his burden of showing that Mr. Smith did
not relay at all. (sic)

THE COURT - All right. All right, well, I’'ll
take this matter under advisement. I want to take a look
at the things that are here in the Judge’s packet for this,
and I want to take a look at my notes a little bit further
and I’11 -- but I’11 -—— I’'d anticipate issuing a decision"
very shortly. All right?

MR. SHELDON - Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. HUNTER - Would you like proposed orders?
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THE COURT - If you would like -- if.you’d like to
submit a proposed order, I’'d be happy to take it.

MR. SHELDON - I think we’ve actually already done
that for Judge Kinard, so —---

THE COURT - All right. If you want to do that,
then that’ll be fine, and I’1l take a look at it. Thank
you.

MR. HUNTER - Thank you.

"MR. SHELDON - Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT - Thank you.

(END OF TRANSCRIPT)
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CERTIFICATE

I, Shirley Broom, Official Court Reporter
for the Sixteenth Judicial Circuit for the State of South
Carolina, do hereby certify that the foregoing 29 pages is
a true, accurate and complete Transcript of Record of the
proceedings had and the evidence introduced in the
proceedings of Robert Shaver vs. State of South Carolina,
as taken by me in The Court of Common Pleas for the
Sixteenth Judicial Circuit on August 1, 2016, and provided
by me this theaiﬂaay of élz , 2016.

I do further certify that I am neither of

kin, counsel, nor interest to any party herein.

Shirley Bfdom, CVR-M

Official Court Reporter,

Certified Verbatim Reporter, In and
for the State of South Carolina
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
) SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF YORK )
) File Book No.: 2013-CP-46-1792
Robert Shaver #234875, ) ‘
) ORDER
Petitioner, ) <
) 20
VS. g ) gg
o
State of South Carolina, ) %Qo :
) <o
Respondent, ) b

The Applicant Robert Shaver pled guilty on March 31, 2011 before the Honorable John
C. Hayes, III to Distribution of a Schedule II Narcotic (Morphine) and Distribution of a Schedule
I (both first offense). Appli/cant was sentenced to fifteen years and one year concurrent
respectively and that was suspended on a sentence of drug court. Applicant was terminated from
drug court and on November 29, 2012 was sentenced by the Honorable John C. Hayes, III to
fifteen years on the distribution of a Schedule II charge and one year on the Distribution of a
Schedule I charge to run concurrently.

The Applicant filed this post-conviction relief application on June 7, 2013, wherein
Applicant alleges ineffective assistance of trial counsel. The Applicant was represented by Phil
Smith of the York County Public Defender’s Office for his initial plea into Drug Court and by
William Hancock of the York County Bar for the imposition of his sentence after failing out of
Drug Court.

The parties stipulated to the fact that there is no transcript available from the initial plea

in 2011. A transcript is available for the actual imposition of Applicant’s sentence. The parties

Shaver v. State 2013-CP-46-1792 %/
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agree that the transcript was requested timely and it is neither the fault of the applicant nor the
State that no transcript exists from the original sentencing.

This matter was originally heard by The Honorable J. Emest Kinard, Jr. on April 13,
2015. J udge' Kinard instructed both attorneys to prepare orders following the testimony at that
hearing. However, shortly thereafter Judge Kinard passed away prior to ruling on either order
that was submitted to him.

The case was then assigned to The Honorable Brian M. Gibbons to review and determine
if a ruling could be made on the transcript, or if an additional evidentiary hearing was needed.
Judge Gibbons determined that a de novo hearing was needed due to the lack of an original
transcript from the initial plea.

Ultimately, Judge Gibbons relinquished jurisdiction to York County and issued an Order
instructing the Attorney General to schedule the case on the normal PCR docket in York County
as soon as it could be heard. This matter was heard on a de novo basis before this Court on
August 1, 2016.

The court heard testimony from the Applicant regarding his original sentencing.
Applicant stated that his attorney, Phil Smith, said he could either accept a five year sentence or
plead into drug court. Applicant testified that Mr. Smith did not explain to him everything
involved with Drug Court. Applicant also testified that he believed that the suspended sentence
would be similar to the active five year sentence that he turned down. Applicant stated that he
did not know that the suspended sentence was going to be fifteen years and had he known that he
would not have accepted drug court.

Applicant also testified that he hired Attorney Hancock for the sentencing hearing, and

that Attorney Hancock told him he would be able to get him less time. The transcript from the

. ; Ve
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sentencing hearing reflects that the Applicant was sentenced to fifteen years, but that Mr.
Hancock would be permitted to file a Motion to Reconsider the Sentence for downward
departure. The Court allowed Mr. Hancock time to do this, but there is no evidence that this
Motion was ever filed. Applicant testified that he had never received a copy of any Motion. The
Court file does not contain any motion regarding the reconsideration of the sentence.

The Court then heard from Mr. Smith. Mr. Smith testified that he was the original plea
attorney, but denied that he had forced Applicant to plea and stated that he did not promise him a
five year suspended sentence. Mr. Smith was questioned about the sentencing sheets themselves,
and he acknowledged that they simply listed “Drug Court” as the sentence and made no
reference to the active time that could be imposed. Mr. Smith testified that this was not common
and that absent a transcript, the only thing he could rely upon are the notes that he took at the
plea. Mr. Smith acknowledged that the notes he took during the plea were minimal. Mr. Smith
acknowledged that the “15” portion of his notes was written at a different time than the rest of
the sentencing note and was most likely written sometime after his notes from the plea. Mr.
Smith offered no other explanation. Mr. Smith also stated that he ilad an email from Drug Court
referencing a fifteen year sentence, but this email was sent after the imposition of the sentence
itself and was not an email prepared prior to sentencing as some sort of plea agreement. Mr.
Smith acknowledged that absent the traﬁscript there was no filed document referencing the
fifteen year suspended sentence.

Mr. Smith also testified that he had done hundreds of pleas in front of Judge Hayes and
that in his experience J udge Hayes always examined the defendant as to the voluntariness of the
plea and the standard plea colloquy. Mr. Smith had never been part of a plea where Judge Hayes‘

did not engage in this practice.

Shaver v, State 2013-CP-46-1792 %/
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Mr. Hancock is deceased. Unfortunately, he was not alive for the original PCR hearing,
so there is no testimony regarding the circumstances surrounding the reconsideration of the
sentence other than the transcript from the imposition of the sentence.

STANDARD OF LAW

In an action for post-conviction relief, the burden of proof is on the Applicant to prove
his allegations by a preponderance of the evidence. Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. 385, 570 S.E.2d
172 (2002) (citing Rule 7.1(e), SCRCP); Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 442 (1985). “To establish
a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a PCR applicant has the burden of proving
counsel's representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness and, but for counsel's
errors, there is a reasonable probability the result at trial would have been different.” Johnson v.
State, 480 S.E.2d 733, 735 (1997)(citing Underwood v. State, 309 S.C. 560 (1992); Simmons v.
State, 308 S.C. 481 (1992)). In this way, an ineffective assistance of counsel claim involves a
two prong analysis: (1) that counsel’s performance was deficient and (2) that counsel’s
performance prejudiced the Applicant. Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 386 S.E.2d 624 (1989).
Demonstrating error requires a showing that counsel’s performance fell below the
“reasonableness under professional norms.” Id. at 117. In order to show prejudice, the Applicant
must prove that “there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors,
the result of the proceeding would have been different.” Id. at 117-18. “A reasonable
probability is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome of the trial.”
Johnson, 480 S.E.2d at 735(citing Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052
(1984)). With respect to guilty plea counsel, the Applicant must show there is a reasonable
probability that, but for counsel's alleged errors, he would not have pled guilty and would have

insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 59 (1985).

Shaver v. State 2013-CP-46-1792 %)/
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L. Trial Counsel was ineffective for failing to offer reasonable and sound advice

regarding the original plea into drug court.

It is unclear from the lack of transcript exactly which parts of the original plea, if any,
were negotiated and because there is no transcript available it is impossible to tell. Applicant
testified that he believed that when he turned down the five year active sentence offer from the
State and accepted the pela into drug court that the suspended sentence would be substantially
similar. Applicant also testified that had he known he would receive a suspended fifteen year
sentence that he would not have accepted the plea.

It apprears that Mr. Smith likely did not communicate the possible punishment of
Applicant’s plea into drug court and had he done so the outcome would have been substantially
different in favor of the defendant. This is bolstered by the lack of communications regarding
the original fifteen year sentence in trial counsel’s file. The sentence itself was written in
different colored ink and, by counsel’s own admission, most probably written at a different time
than the rest of the sentencing notes. The oxﬂy other document that contains fifteen years on it is
the email sent by drug court after the imposiﬁon of the sentence. Neither of these documents
were produced prior to sentencing. Trial Counsel’s actions constitute prejudice.

II. Trial Counsel was ineffective in not ﬁling a Motion to Reconsider for

downward departure.

At the sentencing hearing for the failure out of drug court, Mr. Hancock specifically
asked the Court to reconsider the fifteen year sentence based on the downward departure portion
of the drug court statute. The Court allowed him time to formally file that motion, but sentenced
the Applicant in the interim. There is no evidence that motion was ever filed. The applicant

testified that he never received that motion and that motion was not in the Court file. Mr.

5
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Hancock was ineffective in not following through with filing a formal Motion to Reconsider
Applicant’s sentence. There is no way to say whether or not the Court would have reduced the
sentence based on the reconsideration, but the Court did bend the rules in allowing him to have
time to file the motion. He specifically asked for permission to file a motion reconsidering the
sentence, was granted an extension of time to do so, and never actually did so. Mr. Hancock’s
actions constitute reversible error and prejudice.

There is also nothing in the record that indicates Mr. Hancoclg ordered a transcript from
the original guilty pléa into drug court. As a result, Mr. Hancock was left with accepting the
fifteen year sentence as being accurate. Mr. Hancock’s failure to order a transcript to confirm
the fifteen year sentence constitutes reversible error and prejudice.

CONCLUSION

This Court finds the Applicant has satisfied the first prong of the Strickland test — that
both Mr. Smith and Mr. Hancock failed to render reasonably effective assistance under
prevailing professional norms. Mr. Smith failed to produce any evidence that he informed the
applicant that the active five year plea would balloon to a fifteen year suspended sentence if he
agreed to Drug Court. Mr. Smith’s file contains nothing documenting a fifteen year suspended
sentence prior to the imposition of the sentence.

Mr. Hancock asked the Court to allow him to file a motion for downward departure from
the sentence but failed to ever do so. Clearly, applicant wanted him to do so. He paid Mr.
Hancock to represent him at sentencing and was sentenced to the maximum sentence. Itis a
natural and reasonable inference to assume that applicant would want a maximum imposed

sentence to be reconsidered if possible.

_ 6
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This Court also finds the Applicant has satisfied the second prong of the Strickland test —
that he was prejudiced by counsels’ performance. Applicant testified that he would not have
taken the plea offer had he known that the suspended sentence was fifteen years. Absent a
transcript, this Court has no way to know for sure that the sentence was fifteen years, but even if

- the Court assumes it was, it is likely that the defendant would have believed that the suspended
sentence would be similar to the five year active sentence he was originally offered. The
applicant testified to the same. Again, there is no evidence in counsei’s file that the fifteen year
suspended offer was relayed to applicant prior to the sentencing.

Furthermore, it is equally reasonable to conclude that applicant was prejudiced by Mr.
Hancock’s failure to file a reconsideration of the original sentence. The trial court went out of its
way to allow him to do so. He received a maximum sentence on the charge. Yet, somehow, this
motion was never filed and the reconsideration of the sentence was never heard. This Court
concludes the Applicant has met his burden of proving counsel failed to render reasonably
effective assistance.

Based on the testimony of the witnesses, a careful review of the record and all of the
foregoing, the Court finds and concludes that the Applicant has met his burden in establishing
that the Applicant is entitled to post-conviction relief. For the foregoing reasons, this application
for post-conviction relief is granted.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Appl‘icant has
met his burden in establishing that he is entitled to post-conviction relief aﬁd the same is hereby
granted. Applicant is ordered remanded to the custody of the York County Detention Center
pending further proceedings on this case.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

7
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
) OF THE SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF YORK )
) 2013-CP-46-1792
Robert Shaver, )
S.C.D.C. No. 234875, )
)
Applicant, )
) RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO RECONSIDER
V. )
)
State of South Carolina, )
)
Respondent. )
)

Respondent, pursuant to Rules 59(a) and (e), SCRCP, would respectfully show unto this
Court:
L
This matter comes before the Court by way of an Application for Post-Conviction Relief
(PCR) filed June 7, 2013. Respondent made its Return on or about October 1, 2013. An
evidentiary hearing into the matter was convened on August 1, 2016, at tﬁe Moss Justice Center
in York, South Carolina. Applicant was present at the hearing and represented by Nathan
Sheldon, Esquire. Justin J. Hunter, Esquire, of the South Carolina Attorney General's Office
represented the Respondent. By order filed September 26, 2016, the Court granted relief on two
grounds raised in the Application. Respondent received a copy of this order on September 29,
2016.
IL
Respondent respectfully asks this Court to reconsider its judgment granting Applicant

post-conviction relief based on the following.
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Plea Advice

In the order granting relief, the Court found that Applicant's plea counsel was ineffective
for failing to offer reasonable and sound advice regarding the original plea into drug court.
Counsel testified that he explained the potential sentences to Applicant, and Applicant wanted a
Drug Court plea. Counsel testified that Drug Court pleas are negotiated before the defendant
enters Drug Court, so Applicant would have known what he was facing if he failed out of Drug
Court. Counsel testified that he believed Applicant knew that he would receive a fifteen year
sentence — that was negotiated — if he failed out of Drug Court. Furthermore, Counsel testified
that he relayed the State's offer of a five year cap, but Applicant rejected this offer. Applicant
testified that he wanted a five year cap — the same deal that he originally rejected. Regardless of
the fact that the potential sentence was not written on the original sentencing sheet, it is clear
from the testimony that Applicant knew what he was facing regarding his Drug Court plea. As
such, there is no evidence to support the finding that counsel was ineffective regarding his advice
to Applicant.

Downward Departure

First, this Court should reconsider granting relief based on scnténcing counsel's failure to
file a downward departure, this Court erred as a matter of law in finding Counsel ineffective for
failing to file a downward departure motion. The only motion for a downward departure found in
South Carolina's Code is found in S.C. Code Ann. § 17-25-65. This statute indicates the State,
not defense counsel, is the party who must move for a sentence reduction. See S.C. Code Ann. §
17-25-65(C) ("A motion made pursuant to this provision shall be filed by that circuit solicitor in
the county where the defendant's case arose.") Thus, it is an error of law to find sentencing

counsel ineffective for failing to do something which he has no statutory authority to do.
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Accordingly, this Court should reconsider its ruling that sentencing counsel was deficient for
failing to file a motion for a downward departure.
Motion to Reconsider

This Court also found that Applicant's sentencing counsel was ineffective for failing to
file a r\notion to reconsider for a downward departure. At‘the sentencing hearing, sentencing
counsel asked the court to reconsider the sentence and the court allowed him time to formally file
the motion. Sentencing counsel néver filed the motion. The Court should reconsider granting
relief on this ground because there is no showiﬂg of prejudice. A motion to reconsider requires
more than simply filing a motion, and for Applicant to suffer prejudice, he has to show that there
was some basis for the motion to be filed. Applicant has failed to show that there was any basis
whatsoever for the motion. He has failed to show that a motion to reconsider would have been
successful or that there were any grc;unds that would have possibly been successful in the motion
to reconsider. The Order of Dismissal concedes the fact that it is specul%l/tion to say whether or
not the motion would have been granted, however Applicant never even addressed what new or
additional evidence existed that his sentencing counsel should have been presented on the motion
to reconsider.

In all, Applicant has wholly failed to show that he was prejudiced because he has failed
to show that this motion would have been meritorious and, more importantly, he has failed to
show any evidence that the outcome would have been different had sentencing counsel filed the
motion. |

Furthermore, the PCR Court's ruling fails to specify relief. The Court granted relief on
plea counsel's failure to give proper advice concerning the plea. The relief in this case would be

for Applicant's plea to be vacated. The Court also granted relief on sentencing counsel's failure to

Page 3 of 4



75

file a motion to reconsider. The relief in that case would seemingly be for Applicant to file a
belated motion to reconsider, which is not proper in post-conviction relief.
I1L.
WHEREFORE, Respondent respectfully requests the Court to amend the final judgment

to reflect a finding that plea and sentencing counsel were not ineffective.

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney General

JOHANNA VALENZUELA
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

JUSTIN J. HUNTER
Assistant Attomey General

By: %@5// 74% —

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

October 11, 2016
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
COUNTY OF YORK ;
% 2013-CP-46-1792
ROBERT SHAVER, #234875, )
Applicant, ;
Vs g AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, %
Respondent. g
)
1. I am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.

o

Regular comniunication by mail exists throughout the: State of South Carolina and that
this is a proper circumstance of service by mail.

(W3]

I have this day served a copy of the Respondent’s Motion to Reconsider in the
above-captioned matter on the following person by depositing same in the United States
mail, postage prepaid:

* Nathan J. Sheldon, Esquire
The Law Office of Nathan J. Sheldon, LLC
PO Box 36682
Rock Hill, SC 29732-0510

DATED this 11" day of October, 2016.

Joctlyn Bakef) Legal Assistant
/. :
For Respondent.
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